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Milk Tea
Tsui Wah combines premium Ceylon tea leaves with 
many years of teas-training know-how to bring the perfect 
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milk in a preheated teacup, the tea is perfection.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors“ and the “Board”, respectively) of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (the 
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Tsui Wah”), I am pleased to announce the annual results 

During the year under review, the recovery of the global economy was uneven, which has in turn affected the 
economic development in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. The growth in the overall income of the catering 
industry slowed down as a result. In this situation, I firmly believe that good corporate governance has increased 
consumer confidence and formed the cornerstone of the Group’s goodwill. Therefore, Tsui Wah has actively adjusted 
its development strategies by careful consideration of current conditions in order to execute a strategic 
reorganisation aiming at a continuous optimisation of its organisational structure and management system. As for the 
top management team, the Group has appointed Mr. Pang Kwing Ho Peter as our chief executive officer with effect 

Group to successfully overcome its unfavourable situation with effective cost controls in only a few months. Profit 
attributable to shareholders has also recorded a greater increase as compared to last year.

During the year under review, after the expiration of some restaurant leases, the Group assessed the locations of its 
restaurants. The Group has laid a strong foundation for rapid and steady development in the future by reorganising 
its resources. During the year, the Group opened a total of nine new restaurants in Hong Kong, Macau, Nanjing, 

China, Hong Kong and Macau. With our extensive restaurant network, regular new offerings and newly launched 
advertisement campaigns, it is hoped that new vitality will be injected into Tsui Wah, a historic Cha Chaan Teng (茶餐
廳) brand spanning half a century.

Sizzling King Prawns with Fried Noodles
A noodle dish inspired by the classic Peking Sweet and 
Sour Chili Prawn. The noodles are pan-fried to a crispy 
and crunchy state and then mixed with succulent sweet 
and sour king prawns on top.

Si
A n
So
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Chairman’s Statement

To further drive growth, the Group has adopted a diversified development strategy. During the year under review, 
the Group’s “Supreme Catering” (至尊到會) business entered the wedding market in Hong Kong for the first time 

customers to further open up income streams. The Group’s “Tsui Wah Delivery” (快翠送) service business also 
continued to attain steady growth, aiming to provide comprehensive quality catering services to customers with 
differing needs among various regions.

During the year under review, the Group garnered a number of awards in many areas, fully reflecting Tsui Wah’s 

Cha Chaan Teng” accolades at the 
新假期周刊

the Mystery Shopper Service Association in Hong Kong. In Mainland China the Group was awarded “The Most 

its listing, marking a significant milestone. I fervently hope to work more closely with everybody in the Group in the 

such as optimising manpower allocation and enhancing production capacity to keep pace with the times and become 
more competitive. The Group’s future development is focusing on two aspects: expanding revenue and controlling 
costs. The main measures towards achieving these objectives are as follows:

Hong Kong and Mainland China in order to expand revenue sources, realise economies of scale and continue 
to increase market share

Catering” and “Tsui Wah Delivery” businesses

food and catering services and thereby proactively adapt to the changing market environment

Kong, Macau and Mainland China

efficiency and productivity of the existing facilities with an aim to become a modern and automated catering 
enterprise

their capabilities to execute their responsibilities

view to further reducing operating costs
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Chairman’s Statement

As the first listed Cha Chaan Teng enterprise in Hong Kong, Tsui Wah has achieved a truly distinguished historical 

cycles together with the people of Hong Kong by following the principle of “speed, quality and perfection.” In the 
future, Tsui Wah is steadfastly committed to providing quality food and satisfactory services to everyone in response 
to the support we have received from society. Looking ahead, based on the building blocks of its achievements over 

Last but not least, I would like to take this opportunity, on behalf of my fellow Directors and all the staff of Tsui Wah, 
to extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, shareholders, suppliers and business partners for their long term 
support and confidence in the Group.

Lee Yuen Hong
Chairman and Executive Director
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

been persistently affected by the weakness of the global and Chinese economy in recent years. The impact of the 

sector continued to be negatively impacted due to the continuing decline in the number of visitors from Mainland 
China. The softened number of inbound tourists which weakened the domestic retail market and coupled with the 
prevailing uncertainties in global economic policy, had further dampened consumer confidence, creating a difficult 
operating environment for the Group. Furthermore, the Group continued to stem the pressure of the substantial 
rising costs in rent, labour and raw ingredients, a recurring trend over the years.

Notwithstanding that the performance of the Chinese economy last year was the weakest in three decades and the 
corresponding effect it had on the domestic economy, the Group still maintained stable results. The Group is proud 

th

Hong Kong, Tseung Kwan O Gateway 
Branch
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
During the last financial year, the Group continued to organically implement its restaurant expansion business plan 
by opening a total of nine new restaurants across Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. The new restaurant in 

development. In Macau, the Group opened one new restaurant at the StarWorld Macau Hotel located in the Macau 
Peninsula, the northernmost region connected to Mainland China, which is considered to be the centre of most 
tourist activity as well as being a densely populated area. In Mainland China, the Group opened seven new 

in Nanjing as well as cities in the ‘Pearl River Delta’ region including Guangzhou and Shenzhen. The locations of the 
newly opened restaurants were chosen largely because they are situated in areas with higher customer traffic and fair 
rental costs.

within these three jurisdictions. The Group will continue to adhere to a prudent and viable strategy in respect of its 
site selection for the opening of new restaurants in light of the challenges confronting the tourism and retail industry, 
food and catering sector as well as sluggish consumer confidence in the regions in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong, Yuen Long Branch
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Macau, StarWorld Branch

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The food and catering industry continued to be challenged by the precarious macroeconomic environment as well as 
substantially rising costs in three key areas, namely raw ingredients, rent and labour. The Group has striven to 
implement and maintain effective cost and expense controls and improve the overall operating efficiencies through a 

to the continued use of central kitchens located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which maintained a consistent 
standard of food quality, decreased the costs associated with food processing and streamlined procurement as well 
as supply chain management. The efficient use of these aforementioned cost control measures not only brought 
about a positive development to food preparation and processing but the improvement in operational efficiency also 

costs during the year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

mainly attributable to the slowdown in the economy of Mainland China, the deterioration in Hong Kong’s retail 
industry in the first half of the last financial year and the corresponding diminishing number of inbound tourists 
visiting from Mainland China coupled with cautious consumer spending. The dip in revenue was otherwise caused by 
certain store closures. The restaurant at the Peak, considered to be a tourist hot spot and one of the most affluent 
areas of Hong Kong, was also under renovation during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cost of inventories sold

decreased for the year under review as compared to the preceding year owing to the Group’s bulk procurement 
policy from its suppliers in respect of ingredients, beverages and other operating items required for the operation of 
its restaurants, resulting in more favourable purchase prices for such items. Furthermore, the Group’s management 
and implementation of key measures to control the food preparation process had reduced material loss and the 
continued use of the Group’s central kitchens in both Hong Kong and Mainland China contributed to the reduction 
of the cost associated with food processing.

Gross profit

sales resulting from the closure of certain restaurants in Hong Kong and Mainland China, including Wuhan and 
Hangzhou.

Human resources and remuneration policy

The Group understands the importance of recruiting the right personnel and retaining experienced staff in the highly 

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to market conditions, individual qualifications and 
performance, degree of responsibility, level of experience as well as the Group’s financial results. The Group reviews 
the remuneration of employees from time to time and continued to make proper adjustments to the salary of its staff 
during the period under review in line with the Group’s historical practices.

Pre-IPO Share Option 
Scheme”), where certain executives, employees and Directors (“Eligible Employees”) are entitled to share options 
to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) as a reward for recognising the contribution of 

during the last financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Human resources and remuneration policy (Continued)

Share Option Scheme”), 
where certain eligible persons whose contributions have been beneficial to the performance, growth or success of 
the Group would be awarded a personal stake in the Company. Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no 

Property rentals and related expenses

the renewal of certain leases. In order to ensure better control of property rental costs and related expenses, the 
Group typically negotiated rental agreements with longer lease terms, to maintain commercially predictable and 
certain rental costs.

Share of profits of joint ventures

mainly attributable to the economic downturn in Macau, which 

in turn affected the performance of the local retail and catering sector despite the Group’s opening of a new 

restaurant during the year under review.

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

As a result of the decrease in other operating expenses and no provision for the impairment of fixed assets, profit for 

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group financed its business with internally generated cash flows and the proceeds received from the listing of 
the issued Shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange

Listing

opening of new restaurants. Most bank deposits and cash were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

the Group had

Material acquisition and disposal

conditional sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with certain Directors and controlling shareholders of the 
Company for the acquisition of Success Path Limited which owns a building in Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

considered under the SPA. The Board was of the view that the termination of the SPA was in the interests of the 
Company and its shareholders (the “Shareholders“) as a whole and had no material adverse impact on the existing 
business or financial position of the Group.

Use of net proceeds from the Listing

approximately as follows:

Use of net proceeds

Percentage
of net

proceeds Net proceeds
Amount
utilised

Amount
remaining

(in HK$ million) (in HK$ million) (in HK$ million)

Opening new restaurants and delivery centres  
 and launch of catering service in Hong Kong
Opening new restaurants in Mainland China
Construction of new central kitchen 
 in Hong Kong
Construction of new central kitchens 
 in Shanghai and Southern China
Upgrading information technology systems
Additional working capital and
 other general corporate purposes
     

Total
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

and Renminbi. The Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency. Future exchange rates of the Renminbi could vary 
significantly from the current or historical exchange rates as a result of the controls that could be imposed by the 
government of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC“). The exchange rates may also be affected by domestic 
and international economic developments and political changes, and the demand and supply for the Renminbi. The 
appreciation or devaluation of the Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar may have an impact on the Group’s 
results. The Group will continue to take proactive measures and closely monitor its exposure to such currency 
movement.

Contingent liabilities

Charge on assets

facilities of the Group, there was no charge on the Group’s other assets.

Training and continuing development

to operational and occupational safety and also customer services were provided to relevant employees in order to 

of the Group’s business ethos.

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK
Customer satisfaction

In the foreseeable future, the Group will continue to effect its core strategy of prioritising its customers’ dining 
experience by maintaining stringent food safety and diversifying the menu to suit seasonal changes in order to attract 
a broader base of customers whilst ensuring that its signature dishes will continue to be served to the highest quality. 
The Group has always endeavoured to provide high quality food at affordable prices for its customers in a 
comfortable and hygienic Cha Chaan Teng environment.

Corporate social responsibility

The Group is resolutely committed in adhering to its core corporate values and social responsibilities. The Group 
strongly encourages all its employees to partake in the charitable activities associated with the Group such as the 
Community Chest fundraiser and Aberdeen Dragon Boat Race. The Group has also promoted environmental 
protection initiatives, bolstered its green procurement and energy saving policies, and also provided customers with 
friendly reminders to reduce food waste. The Group continues to take an unwaveringly proactive role in giving back 
to the community.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Outlook

As the global economy is still undergoing a period of uncertainty and has witnessed unprecedented recent political 
events, the Group remains cautious and concerned about the impact on the economic conditions in Hong Kong and 
Mainland China. In particular, the Group will continue to monitor the rental lease terms for its respective restaurants 
and the rising cost of raw ingredients as well as tackle the pervasive challenge of shortages in labour and the 
upcoming statutory increase in minimum wage in Hong Kong.

Even though the macroeconomic environment has been challenging and is projected to remain so, the Group has 
persevered through this intensely competitive market in the last financial year. The Group remains confident of 

Cha 
Chaan Teng market in light of the Group’s iconic brand and continued popularity as well as the enduring demand for 
the affordable signature dishes offered in Tsui Wah’s restaurants.

In particular for Hong Kong, the Group will continue to organically implement the use of its central kitchen to improve 
operational efficiency by lowering food cost and to ensure consistent food quality as well as continuing to refine 
signature dishes to further enhance customer satisfaction. The Group will continue to expand its restaurant network 
and enlarge its customer base through current business initiatives such as “Tsui Wah Delivery” and “Supreme 
Catering”.

believes will be successful in capturing emerging business opportunities. The Group is pleased to announce that it 
will launch new dishes to attract a broader customer base. The Group intends to increase profit through the placing 

television drama series “溏心風暴”, thereby further cementing the iconic “Tsui Wah” brand in the hearts of the Hong 
Kong populace and the wider Chinese demographic.

In respect of the market outlook for Mainland China, the Group is expected to continue to benefit from ongoing 
urbanisation and development as well as an expected increase in the disposable income of the large 
The Group will continue to evaluate expansion possibilities within different localities in Mainland China including 
other promising first and second tier cities should appropriate opportunities arise. The Group will continue to monitor 
the recovery of the economy in Mainland China and tackle the changes in consumer habits to maintain the 
profitability of the Group.

In addition, while focusing on providing better food and service quality, the Group will also optimise its operational 
systems by retaining experienced staff and encourage creative product development. All of these initiatives, along 
with enhanced marketing and brand recognition activities, will ensure the Group’s ability to generate revenue and 
maximise returns to the Shareholders.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lee Yuen Hong (李遠康

Apart from his current directorate in the Company, he also holds directorship positions in almost all subsidiaries of 
the Company. He is one of the founders of the Group and is primarily responsible for the Group’s overall corporate 
strategies, management and business development. Mr. Lee is also the chairman of the remuneration committee of 
the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a member of the nomination committee of the Company (the 
“Nomination Committee
(新蒲崗翠華餐廳
has since served in various positions within the industry. He served as cook, chief cook and chef in a number of 

industry, in particular in the Cha Chaan Teng segment. He is currently the honorary chairman of the Association of 
Coffee and Tea (香港咖啡紅茶協會), the chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants and Related Trades (香
港餐飲聯業協會) and a member of the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee (方便營商諮詢委員會), the 
Mandatory Provident Fund Industry Schemes Committee (強制性公積金行業計劃委員會

優質旅遊服務小組委員會), the Catering and Hospitality Services Safety and Health Committee and 
the Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in Food (降低食物中鹽和糖委員會), respectively. He also serves as the 

廣州市飲食行業商會) and was appointed as a 
council member of the Shanghai Cuisine Association (上海市烹飪協會). Mr. Lee completed the Hygiene Supervisor 
Training Course (衛生督導員訓練課程) organised by the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department in December 

中山大學) in 

he is a director of Cui Fa Limited, a controlling Shareholder.

Mr. Cheung Yu To (張汝桃

current directorate in the Company, he also holds directorship positions in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. 
Cheung is also a director of Cui Fa Limited, a controlling Shareholder. Together with Mr. Lee Yuen Hong, he is 
responsible for the Group’s overall management of the Group’s business operations. Mr. Cheung has been working 

基礎食物衛生經理課程) 
organised by the Li Ka Shing Institute of Professional and the Continuing Education of the Open University of Hong 
Kong. In addition, he is a director of Cui Fa Limited, a controlling Shareholder.

Mr. Lee Tsz Kin Kenji (李祉鍵 s in almost all subsidiaries 

head of the brand development department of the Group, responsible for corporate development, leasing 
cooperation and business diversification of the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director and the business 

development, project development as well as facilities management, leasing, and information technology business of 
the Group. In addition, he is a director of Cui Fa Limited, a controlling Shareholder.

Trades (香港餐飲聯業協會
(“UK”) with a bachelor’s degree majoring in international business. In the same year, he was appointed as the 
executive member of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangxi Community Organisation. Mr. Lee Tsz Kin Kenji is the 
son of Mr. Lee Yuen Hong, the chairman of the Board and an executive Director.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheng Chung Fan (鄭仲勳

SFO”) to carry on dealing in 

specialising in engineering enterprise management from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 

Mr. Cheng Yu Sang (鄭如生

responsible for overseeing and managing the catering services of the Group in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong Chi Kin (黃志堅
of the Company (the “Audit Committee

years of experience working in accounting, banking and corporate finance with various international banks and 
companies listed in Hong Kong and the UK.

Mr. Wong has been the chief financial officer of Orient Victory China Holdings Limited (“Orient Victory”) (stock 

of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of CPA Australia and an associate 
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee (吳慈飛)
Mr. Goh is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination 
Committee, respectively. Mr. Goh is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong and has been a practicing solicitor 

Mr. Tang Man Tsz (鄧文慈
also a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, respectively. Currently, he is the 
managing director of UNI Consulting (HK) Limited, responsible for providing consulting services to listed companies. 

He worked for numerous renowned international banking corporations including Merrill Lynch, UBS, Royal Bank of 
Scotland and BNP Paribas, in which he was involved in the provision of bond financing and equity financing services. 

Mr. Yim Kwok Man (嚴國文)

debt and equity capital markets, asset management as well as mergers and acquisitions in Asia, in particular in Hong 
Kong and the PRC. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK and a 
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yim is a registered representative of type 5 

management) with the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC”). He has served as a managing 
director of Galaxy Asset Management (H.K.) Limited and worked with various international financial institutions and 
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Pang Kwing Ho Peter (彭烱豪

incorporation.

has been involved in the strategic development and management of private companies engaged in the restaurant 
business. Mr. Pang started his career at Sapporo Beer and subsequently joined Remy Martin Group. He was 

operated a chain of restaurants in Hong Kong and was nicknamed by the media as “The Father of SoHo East” in 

Ms. Li Tsau Ha (李楸夏
administration from University of South Australia in October in the same year. Currently, she is the Company’s general 
manager, responsible for the execution of the daily business operations of the Group as well as in charge of the 
Group’s administrative and human resources functions. Ms. Li has over ten years of management experience in the 
catering industry, as well as in human resources, training development and employee relations. She is a member of 
the board of directors of the Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants and Related Trades (香港餐飲聯業協會), a 
member of the Association for Hong Kong Catering Services Management Limited, a member of the Hong Kong 

a council member of the Lift and Escalator Safety Advisory Committee of Hong Kong, a member of the Catering 

completed the Basic Food Hygiene Certificate for Food Hygiene Managers organised by Hong Kong Christian 

and Banquet (店務管理)
(高級人力資源法務 

(規劃) 師) 
adjudicator of the Immigration Tribunal as well as a member of the Appeal Panel (Housing) in Hong Kong.

Mr. Yang Dong John (楊東

the management and development of business in the PRC. He served as the company secretary and an authorised 

over fifteen years of experience in auditing, consolidated accounting, financial management, due diligence 
investigation, compliance auditing and financial auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he was the chief financial officer 
and company secretary of Wedding Banquet Specialist (煌府婚宴專門店). He spent over ten years at KPMG’s Hong 
Kong and Beijing offices, having engaged in numerous auditing projects involving listed companies on the Stock 

business administration (accountancy) and obtained his master’s degree in business administration from The Chinese 
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance to safeguard 
Shareholders’ interests. The Company has adopted and adhered to the principles in the Corporate Governance 
Code (the “CG Code the Stock 
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The corporate governance principles of the Company place strong emphasis on an 
effective board with a high level of integrity, proper internal controls, as well as ensuring a high degree of 
transparency and accountability, which not only enhances corporate value for Shareholders but also protects the 

all the code provisions of the CG Code.

The Board periodically reviews and continues to enhance the Company’s corporate governance policies to ensure 
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), is responsible for the leadership and control of the 
Company and is vested with the overall management of the Group’s business. The Board is collectively responsible 
for promoting the success of the Company, by making decisions objectively having regard to the best interests of the 

operation of the Group to the senior management team of the Company. Such responsibilities include implementing 

the strategies and plans as approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the operation and production plans 
and budgets, as well as supervising and monitoring the control systems. In addition, the Board has established Board 
committees and has delegated various responsibilities to these Board committees as set out in their respective terms 
of reference.

The Board undertakes responsibility for its decision for all major matters of the Company, including the approval and 
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, 
material transactions (in particular those that may involve a conflict of interest), financial information, appointment of 
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

With the assistance of the Company’s company secretary (the “Company Secretary”), the Chairman has sought to 
ensure that all Directors were properly consulted on all major matters relating to the Company. The Directors were 
sufficiently briefed on issues raised during Board meetings and that all relevant information had been received in a 
timely manner. To the extent that any of the Directors required independent professional advice, this would be met 
by the Group, at the Group’s expense, upon the Director having made a request to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Meetings and General Meeting

AGM”) 

Name of Director

Number of 
Board

meeting(s)
attended/
eligible to 

attend

AGM
attended/
eligible to

attend

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lee Yuen Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Yu To

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”):

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”):
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee

Mr. Yim Kwok Man
   

obtained by way of written resolutions on a number of matters.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) was Mr. Ho Ting Chi, a former executive Director, who has been replaced 

Code, which stipulates that the chairman and chief executive should be segregated and should not be performed by 
the same individual. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board, encouraging all Directors to be proactive in 
their contributions to the Company’s affairs and ensures that the Directors act in the best interests of the Company. 
The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company and is mainly responsible for overseeing 
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, business objectives and management policies.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Composition

Membership of Board Committee(s)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lee Yuen Hong (Chairman) Chairman of Nomination Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Cheung Yu To
Mr. Lee Tsz Kin Kenji

NEDs:
Mr. Wong Chi Kin Member of Audit Committee
Mr. Cheng Chung Fan
Mr. Cheng Yu Sang

INEDs:
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yim Kwok Man Chairman of Audit Committee
Mr. Tang Man Tsz Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee
  

professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise. Mr. Yim Kwok Man is a fellow 
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received an annual confirmation in writing from each of the INEDs of his independence pursuant 

and exercise of impartial judgment from the INEDs. As such, the Board notes that all the INEDs are independent.

headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report, there is no family, financial or 
business relationship among the Directors, and in particular, between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

A full list of Directors is available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and is 
disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the Company from time to time in accordance with the Listing 
Rules.
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Directors’ Liabilities Insurance

protect the Directors from legal action arising from the performance of their duties as a Director. Such insurance 
coverage is reviewed and renewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of Directors

In compliance with the Listing Rules, and in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles 
of Association”), (i) all NEDs should be appointed for specific terms, (ii) all Directors should be subject to retirement 

Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the 

Continuous Professional Development

seminars and other appropriate courses to refresh their knowledge and understanding of the Group and its business 
or to update their skills and knowledge with respect to the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, 
the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices as well as enhancing their awareness on the responsibilities for 
a director of a listed corporation.

Name of Director

Attending
in-house
training

Attending
seminars

and/or
conferences

Reading
materials

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lee Yuen Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Yu To
Mr. Lee Tsz Kin Kenji

NEDs:
Mr. Wong Chi Kin
Mr. Cheng Chung Fan
Mr. Cheng Yu Sang

INEDs:
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee
Mr. Tang man Tsz
Mr. Yim Kwok Man
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model 
Code
in the listed securities of the Company.

Following the specific enquiries made by the Company on them, all Directors confirmed to the Company that they 

of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee to assist in 
carrying out its responsibilities and functions. Each of these Committees has specific written terms of reference 
setting out its duties and authority. The Committees have sufficient resources to execute their requisite duties and 
enjoy the support of management. To the extent that any independent professional advice is required, the 
Committees have access as necessary at the Group’s expense.

Nomination Committee

to the Board on any proposed change to the Board or selection of individuals nominated for directorships, or on 

Hwee and Mr. Tang Man Tsz, both being INEDs, and Mr. Lee Yuen Hong, an executive Director. Mr. Lee Yuen Hong 
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Board adopts a policy which recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the composition of the Board 
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved through a 
number of factors, including but not limited to knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background as well 
as professional experience. In reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, the Company will also take into account of factors 
based on its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
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After considering the nature of the food and catering industry and the characteristics of the Group’s business model, 
the Nomination Committee has considered that the current composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills, 
educational background, experience and diversity of perspectives desirable for the effective management of the 
Company. The Nomination Committee will continue to identify qualified candidates through merit based selection 
and candidates will be considered by using objective criteria, with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the 
Board.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its 
continued effectiveness.

the Nomination Committee for the year under review is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

Number of 
meeting(s)
attended/
eligible to 

attend

Mr. Lee Yuen Hong (Chairman) 

Mr. Goh Choo Hwee

  

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the respective websites of the Company and the 
Stock Exchange.

Diversity Policy, for the appointment of new Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (a) formulating and making recommendations to the 
Board on the Company’s policies and structure for the remuneration of all of Directors and senior management of the 

specific remuneration packages for all executive Directors and senior management in the manner specified in its 

fairness and reasonableness of the terms of any Director’s service agreement which is subject to the approval of the 
Shareholders in general meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules. The current members of the Remuneration Committee 
are Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Tang Man Tsz, both being INEDs, and Mr. Lee Yuen Hong, an executive Director. 
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

the Remuneration Committee for the year under review is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

Number of 
meeting(s)
attended/
eligible to 

attend

Mr. Goh Choo Hwee (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Yuen Hong

  

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the respective websites of the Company and 
the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and 
removal of the external auditor, review the financial statements and material advice in respect of financial reporting 
and oversee the internal control procedures of the Company. The current members of the Audit Committee comprise 
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Yim Kwok Man, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Kin, a NED. Mr. Yim Kwok Man is 
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Audit Committee for the year under review is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

Number of 
meeting(s)
attended/
eligible to 

attend

Mr. Yim Kwok Man (Chairman)
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee
Mr. Wong Chi Kin
  

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock 
Exchange.

5. reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial 
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains and implements comprehensive corporate 

(5) reviewed compliance with the CG Code and made necessary disclosure in the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in fulfillment of its corporate governance 
responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

than the Directors) is broadly set out as follows:

Band of remuneration (HK$)
Number of 

person(s)
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
All Directors fully understand their responsibilities in publishing a clear and accurate assessment of the annual and 

required under the Listing Rules. The Directors acknowledge responsibility for the preparation of the Group’s 
financial statements and confirm the true and fair depiction of the Group’s state of affairs. The independent auditor’s 
statement regarding its reporting responsibilities in respect of the financial statements of the Group is set out on 

are no material uncertainties relating to events which may affect the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

Currently, the Company’s external auditor is Ernst & Young (the “Independent Auditor”).

Fees paid/
payable

HK$’000

Audit service

 Review of interim condensed consolidated financial statements
 Tax services
  

Total
  

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Sound and effective risk management and internal control systems are important to safeguard the Shareholders’ 
investment and the Company’s assets. The Board is directly responsible for risk management and the internal control 
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The systems are designed for the Group to identify and 
manage significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised use or 
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information 
for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are 
designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure in order to achieve the business objectives of the 
Group, and can only serve as reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, 
and has the overall responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of risk 
management and internal control systems. The Board conducts and reviews of the effectiveness of such systems on 
an annual basis through the Audit Committee which is responsible for all material financial, operational and 
compliance controls.
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The Board has adopted a prudent and comprehensive risk management policy to identify, evaluate and manage 
significant risks. Senior management can thereby identify risks which might adversely affect the achievement of the 
Group’s objectives, and assess as well as prioritise the level of risk, in order to draw up risk mitigation plans which can 
then be established to respond to such significant risks.

internal control of certain significant areas of the Group during the year under review.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk 
management and internal control systems in its financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management 
functions, including but not limited to the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and external 

Board is of the opinion that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were adequate and effective 

The Board, also through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy of the Group’s resources, staff 
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting 
functions as well as the qualifications and experience of the internal auditors.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

the Company is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules and has established a policy 
for the disclosure of inside information (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard to the 
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the SFC.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes, among other things:

(a) only designated persons are authorised to communicate the Company’s corporate matters with investors, 

information as soon as practicable for him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining the 

(c) disclosure of inside information must be made in a manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective 

(d) inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a public announcement is made and shall be 
disseminated in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules before it is released via other means.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic development and determines the objectives, strategies and 
policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls operating and financial performance and sets 
appropriate policies for risk management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board delegates the 

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwok Siu Man is the Company Secretary. Mr. Kwok supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and relevant flow 
of information is maintained amongst members of the Board and that all procedures have been adhered to in 
accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Mr. Kwok is a fellow member of each of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Institute of 
Financial Accountants in England, the Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, The Hong Kong Institute of 
Chartered Secretaries, The Association of Hong Kong Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. As Mr. 
Kwok was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in 

Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to be the Company 

to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The primary 
person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. 

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and effective communication with Shareholders 
and investors of the Company. The Board also recognises that effective communication with the Company’s investors 
is critical in establishing investor confidence and attracting new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to 
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the Shareholders and investors of the Company will receive 
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information through the publication of annual reports, interim reports, 
announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes all corporate communications on its website.

of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the chairman of the relevant meeting. Voting at general 
meetings of the Company is conducted by way of poll in accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be 
announced before the conclusion of the general meetings and published on the respective websites of the Stock 
Exchange and the Company. In addition, the Company regularly meets with institutional investors, financial analysts 
and financial media, and promptly releases information related to any significant progress of the Company, so as to 
promote the development of the Company through mutual and efficient communication.
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The Chairman and members of the Board and chairmen of the various Board committees will attend the forthcoming 

to attend the forthcoming AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions regarding the conduct of the audit, the 
preparation and content of the independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Shareholders’ Rights

1. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. 
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an 
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such 

(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a 
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

2. Procedures for Raising Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries regarding their shareholdings, share transfer registration, payment of 
dividend and change of correspondence address to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor 
Investor Services Limited:

Address :
Email :
Tel :
Fax :

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company at the following correspondence address, email 
address and fax number of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary:

Address :
Hong Kong

Email :
Fax :
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3. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a Director:

than a retiring Director for election to the office of Director at any general meeting should lodge (i) a 

lodgement of the notices mentioned above will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of 
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to 
the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the 
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

(ii) Other proposals:
If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the “Proposal(s)

attention of the Company Secretary.

registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation by the share registrar that the request is proper and in 
order, and is made by a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion decide whether the Proposal may 
be included in the agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the notice of meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of the Proposal raised by the 
Shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

Proposal requires approval in an AGM.

Proposal requires approval by way of a special resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of the 
Company.

Proposal requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of 
the Company.
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Constitutional Documents

memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the “M&A”) were adopted with effect from the date of the 

The M&A are available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTRODUCTION
The Group has always regarded corporate social responsibility as one of the core values in its business operations for 
sustainable development. As a leader in the Cha Chaan Teng sector in Hong Kong, the Group has committed to 
maintaining high standards of food safety and environmental protection. The Group is also aware of community 
needs which arise from time to time and has actively participated in community care events and launched various 
campaigns to contribute to society, so as to enhance social care and a sense of responsibility among various 
stakeholders except for business growth, and to achieve a high level of environmental protection, social responsibility 
and governance.

This report summarises several areas of the Group’s business practices related to the environment and society as well 
as relevant implemented policies and strategies to the Group’s (i) operational practices, (ii) working environment, (iii) 
environmental protection, (iv) community engagement and (v) the circumstances of compliance with the relevant laws 

“Notes to Financial Statements” in this annual report.

OPERATIONAL PRACTICES
Food Safety

The Group observed strict compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and implemented a comprehensive 
safety management system for the central kitchen(s) of the Group, with an objective to continuously improving the 
Group’s food quality and hygiene standards.

Shanghai to establish a larger central kitchen in the city in order to support future business expansion. Leveraging on 
the operation of the Group’s central kitchens, the Group achieved better standardisation of its food processing 
procedures and maintained a consistent food quality.

Supply Chain Management

The Group uses strict criteria for the selection of suppliers. The suppliers must hold government approved licences 
and the goods to be sold must be appropriately imported. The goods received from suppliers are required to be in 
compliance with the current food labeling and relevant hygiene and sanitary regulations. Suppliers should submit 
relevant health certificates and the results of laboratory tests for their goods as and when required.

Evaluation on any suppliers for the initial provision of food merchandise is conducted by the procurement 
department. Such evaluation is conducted in compliance with standards regarding food safety, performance of 
suppliers, hygiene, business reputation, sustainability and corporate social responsibility. The Group conducts a 
review on its existing suppliers from time to time, including making an inspection of the production workshops of the 
suppliers.
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services to the Group.

In respect of the Group’s central kitchen in Hong Kong, to monitor the product quality and service level of suppliers, 

procurement department of the Group after discussion during every year end meeting.

The Group has blacklisted certain suppliers who had major quality problems, committed fraudulent acts or used 
deceptive weight and packaging . The procurement department typically conducts investigation and gives notice to 
the offending suppliers to demand improvements so as to ensure the Group’s product quality and to protect the 
interests of consumers.

Quality Assurance

The Group has always striven to provide high quality food and services and places utmost importance to customers’ 
comments and advice. Through the establishment of a comprehensive feedback system, customers are able to 

and has taken appropriate action in accordance with established policies and procedures.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects and protects intellectual property rights. The Group currently operates its restaurants under its 
翠華Concept)”, “Tsui Wah Delivery”, “Tsui Wah 

EATery” and “Supreme Catering”. The Group has taken active steps to protect its trademarks and other intellectual 
property rights by making the necessary filing(s) or registration(s), and has also engaged a legal advisor to advise on 
intellectual property rights registration and renewal matters. In regions where the Group has a presence or the Group 
is considering expanding into, it will conduct detailed studies to ascertain whether there are any infringing acts in 
those areas and will consider appropriate action when any infringing acts occur.

The Group’s other intellectual property rights consist primarily of intellectual property rights with respect to 

awareness of preserving such intellectual property rights, the Group has implemented a set of internal intellectual 
property management rules in its employees’ manual. The use of its central kitchens also enables the Group to 

employment contracts with employees also contain confidentiality provisions with respect to the handling of 
confidential information.

Protection Of Personal Data

As the Group has established a comprehensive feedback system, the data collected from its customers from time to 
time may consist of personal information. In this regard, the Group complies with the provisions of the Personal Data 

specific purposes.
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WORKING ENVIRONMENT
The Group regards its staff as the most important asset and resource of the Group as they help to sustain its core 
values and culture. The Group offered internal vocational training activities and encouraged its staff to attend 

,
hours of training were provided to the Group’s staff in Hong Kong and Mainland China, respectively and the 

The training offered by the Group include occupational health and safety, operation management and leadership 
skills. The Group also arranged a mentorship programme to provide peer support.

Employee Structure

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of a Cha Chaan Teng, therefore, a strong and stable workforce is 

in Mainland China.

Aged
51-60
14.3%

Aged over 60
2.8%

Age proportions

Aged
21-30
34.5%

Aged
under 20

6.8%

Aged
31-40
20.5%

Aged
41-50
21.1%

57.7%

42.3%

Male (M)

Female (F)

Male-to-female ratio
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Health and Safety Policy

As employees are the most important asset and resource of the Group, the primary goal is to provide a safe and 
healthy working environment for employees under reasonable and practicable conditions. The Group is committed 
to achieving this goal by implementing the following measures:

5. Providing employees with safety equipment and protective clothing as and when necessary, and keeping such 
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Staff Training and Development

翠華人

家‧質優文化‧香港代表‧餐飲典範)” as its mission. The Group treats its employees as family members, consistently 

Development (造才‧建構‧發展)”, in that “Incubation of Talent (造才)” always comes first. Talented people are the 
essential element of the catering industry afterall.

The Group values the importance of the growth and development of its employees and has formulated a strategy for 
talent retention. The Group also strives to provide them with training on various aspects of catering services and a 
clear career path with promotion prospects. Different benefits are also provided to retain talents.

As a measure to attract potential candidates to join the Group, the Group offers diversified and professional training 
programmes to ensure they are qualified to carry out their job duties. The programmes cover training for frontline 

to participate on secondments. Moreover, the Group also provides young people with a clear career path as an 
incentive to join the catering industry.

To strengthen the Group’s competitiveness in the labour market, the Group has been improving its management 
system and remuneration package to retain talent. The Group believes “Retention” precedes “Recruitment” in its 
recruitment strategy.

in recognition of its contribution in this aspect.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
The Group is committed to fulfill sustainable development and promote preservation of resources with its 
environmental responsibility. The Group joined the campaign “Food Wise Hong Kong” during the year held by the 
Environment Bureau of Hong Kong, aiming to encourage customers to reduce food waste and promoting the 
concept “Think before you order”, and also support the meatless menu campaign with environmental organisation 

In order to minimise the impact of its business operation on the environment, the central kitchens and certain 

appliances and equipment to achieve additional energy savings and reduce gas emissions, operating lighting control 
systems for regional power supply based on actual needs and regularly participating in the wasted oil recycling plan, 
whereby wasted cooking oil will be provided to biodiesel producers for conversion into renewable energy, with the 
aim of reducing greenhouse gas emissions and air pollution.
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The Group, as a leader in the Cha Chaan Teng sector in Hong Kong, recognises its corporate responsibilities to 
protect the environment and endeavours to minimise food waste. The Group also realises the importance in 
promoting public awareness on reducing food waste. Therefore, the Group has established a “Sustainable 
Development Committee” to review matters regarding environmental protection, environment and safety in its 
restaurants on a regular basis and promote environmental protection in its restaurants. Apart from food safety, 
employee safety, customer safety and safety management, the Group is also involved in matters relating to 
environmental protection, ensuring the Group’s operation is running on a sustainable model. Moreover, the Group 

implemented by the Group:

Food Waste Separation

EATery worked with AAHK and property management companies respectively to deliver separated food waste 
to food waste plants and process them into fish feed and soil conditioner so as to relieve the pressure on 
landfills.

Environmental Protection Department to carry out food waste separation and collection. Besides, for certain 
restaurants of the Group in Mainland China, food wastes were separated and disposed of through qualified 
recyclers.

Waste Oil Recycling Scheme

The central kitchens and certain restaurants of the Group have implemented the waste oil recycling scheme since 

In addition, the Group also participates in the Hong Kong Cooking Oil Registration Scheme launched by Hong Kong 

oil of reliable source and waste oil will be recycled by waste oil recyclers.

Furthermore, certain restaurants of the Group in Mainland China properly disposed of waste cooking oil through 
waste oil collection companies.
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Central Kitchens

All central kitchens of the Group adopt the centralised food processing model which enhances utilisation of raw 
materials and reduces waste. In contrast with the previous supply model that suppliers delivered raw materials directly 
to its restaurants, the central kitchens employ centralised logistics for delivery of food to each restaurant, which 
successfully reduces the frequency of delivery, and in turn contributing to the reduction of carbon emission. The 
Group’s central kitchens operate under an electrified model, under which electricity, a cleaner energy, is used to 
reduce pollution and achieve energy efficiency. After the adoption of the electrified model, no combustion air fan is 
required in the kitchens, thereby reducing noise as well as improving air quality and reducing gas emissions.

Transportation Fleet

control standards issued by the Hong Kong Government. The vehicles are also equipped with diesel particulate filters 
which have reduced particulate emissions, facilitating environmental protection.

Purchasing Policies

Stewardship Council certificate), while products originated from endangered plants or involved in illegal 
logging are not adopted.

trade principle.

Electrical Devices

Certain light switches in the Group’s restaurants are labeled for identification to reduce unnecessary wastage of 
electricity. Moreover, regional lighting control system is programmed to turn off illumination for certain unoccupied 
areas of individual restaurant with reference to its customer traffic flow.

lighting appliances. Signboards of certain new opening restaurants are illuminated by LED. The signboards are 
also equipped with timers to facilitate operation of restaurants and to reduce energy consumption.

adequate power supply is available. In the case of inadequate power supply, certain appliances will be switched 
to alternative energy.

（鎢絲燈）in order save energy.

Air-Conditioning Devices

certain units in unoccupied areas of individual restaurant with reference to its customer traffic flow, and an 
automatic temperature sensor is installed to normalise the temperature in restaurants.
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Water-Consumption Appliances

employees use scrapers or brushes to remove residual before cleaning with water, and certain restaurants of 

be installed for certain restaurants of the Group.

for certain restaurants of the Group.

Green Label/Certification

to assist the industry in improving aspects such as resources utilisation, pollution control and overall 
environmental management.

through services and products.

Food Safety to keep updated on food safety development, enhance food safety, promote a positive image of 
the industry.

Environmental Protection Activities

day per week.

printing dining menus and napkins.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
The Group is constantly aware of community needs and takes up its corporate responsibility with best efforts to make 
a contribution to the community by organising various fundraising events and sponsored community activities. The 
Group grows with the people of Hong Kong over the years and has been actively contributing to society, caring for 
the community, making donations and supporting environmental protection. The Group has set aside reserved funds 
for social services and encouraged its staff and their families to help people in need, demonstrating its corporate 
social responsibility and promoting a culture of care towards.
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Promotion of Caring Culture

The Group has closely cooperated with charitable organisations and encouraged its staff to reach out to community 
in support of social services. The Group has encouraged its staff to participate in social inclusion activities to promote 
a harmonious interaction between disabled and able persons and provide support for disadvantaged groups. To 
promote a harmonious community, Tsui Wah employees visited charitable organisations during various festivals to 
care and attention to the elderly and the sick.

Donation

As a responsible enterprise, the Group highly values charity work and community participation, hoping to contribute 
to Hong Kong society. In the past, the Group actively participated in various charity programs, including donating 
food and funds to various charities. By sponsoring community activities, the Group shows that it cares for the elderly, 
the sick and disadvantaged families, and encourages staff members to participate in such charity programs to give 
back to community.

On another note, the Group places importance on staff training, offering opportunities for individual staff’s personal 

During the year, the Group was praised in many occasions, being recognised for its participation in community 
activities and contribution to sustainable development, and is summarised below:

竹園區神召會慈鳳長者

鄰舍中心) (浸信會愛
羣社會服務處陳德生紀念長者鄰舍中心) 
(救世軍油麻地長者地區中心) 

Community Chest.

Social Enterprise “Running To Your Home”.

男女子混合中龍錦標賽) held 
by the Aberdeen Dragon Boat Race Committee (香港仔龍舟競渡大賽委員會) and participated in the “Family + 

第六屆 香港仔龍舟競渡大賽 「家

家＋魚慈善盃賽」) and the fish distributing event, during which fresh fish was distributed to the public for a 
happy Dragon Boat Festival.

carnival.
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CIRCUMSTANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group is committed to complying with all relevant laws and regulations relating to environmental protection, 
social responsibility and corporate governance. During the reporting period, the Group is not aware of any 
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FAIR REVIEW OF BUSINESS
A fair review of the business of the Group together with a discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during 

business development are set forth in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Management Discussion and Analysis” 
sections of this annual report. The information relating to food quality and safety, customers, suppliers, employees, 
community and environmental protection is accordingly set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance 
Report” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is principally engaged in the operation of a 
chain of Cha Chaan Teng under the  “Tsui Wah (翠華)

“Listing Date”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

CASH FLOW POSITION

DIVIDEND

Shareholders whose names will appear on the register of members of the Company (the “Register of Members”) on 

for the proposed final dividend is passed at the forthcoming AGM, the proposed final dividend will be payable on or 

the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. If the resolution for the proposed special dividend is 

The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

dividend being approved by the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, total dividends for the year under review will 
amount to HK5.5 cents per Share.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For AGM

during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered, in order to ascertain a Shareholders’ entitlement to 

the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the 

For dividends

inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered, for ascertaining a Shareholders’ entitlement to 
receive the proposed final dividend and special dividend. In order to be eligible to receive the proposed final 
dividend and special dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must 

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

distributable provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, if 
any, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of 
business.

RESERVES

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SHARE CAPITAL
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Grantee(s)”) on or 

following manner:

Grantee(s) Exercise period
Maximum percentage of 
options exercisable

Mr. Lee Yuen Hong (“Mr. Lee”) Commencing on the first anniversary 
date  of  the  L i s t ing Date  upon 
fulfillment of certain conditions and 

granted to Mr. Lee

C o m m e n c i n g  o n  t h e  s e c o n d 
anniversary date of the Listing Date 
upon fulfillment of certain conditions 

granted to Mr. Lee

Commencing on the third anniversary 
date  of  the  L i s t ing Date  upon 
fulfillment of certain conditions and 

granted to Mr. Lee

   

Scheme.

the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Number of share options

Grantee(s) Date of grant
Exercisable 
period

Exercise 
price

Balance 
as at Granted

during
the year

Exercised
during

the year

Cancelled or
forfeited

during
the year

Balance 
as at 

Mr. Lee
 per Share

 per Share
     

     

Notes:

Scheme.

Share Option Scheme

Persons (as defined below) an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and to motivate them to optimise 

Eligible 
Persons” refer to (i) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of 
or contractor to the Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (an 
“Affiliate
of which include any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or 

professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share 

the date of this annual report. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon an exercise of the 
options granted under the Share Option Scheme to any one person (including exercised and outstanding options) in 

of options in excess of the aforesaid limit shall be subject to, among other requirements, approval from Shareholders 
in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as 

which an option must be held before it can be exercised in general. However, at the time of granting any option, the 
Board may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject to such conditions, restrictions or limitations including 

submit a duly signed offer letter to the Company as consideration for the grant. The exercise price of the options is 
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(b) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the grant date of the 

(c) the average of the closing prices of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five 
business days immediately preceding the grant date of the relevant option.

further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force and 
effect in all other respects. All options granted prior to the termination of the Share Option Scheme and not then 
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the terms of the Share Option 
Scheme.

Share Option Scheme.

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Yu To

NEDs:

INEDs:
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee

Mr. Yim Kwok Man

once every three years.

shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject for re‐election 
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until 
the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re‐election.

Accordingly, Mr.  Lee Yuen Hong, Mr. Lee Tsz Kin Kenji, Mr. Cheng Chung Fan, Mr. Cheng Yu Sang, Mr. Tang Man 

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to 

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, 
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part 

Code, were as follows:

Interest in the Shares

Name of Directors Nature of interest
Number of

Shares

Number of
Shares subject to
options granted

under the

Share Option
Scheme Total

Approximate
percentage

Mr. Lee Beneficial interest, interests 
 held jointly with another 

 controlled corporation

Mr. Cheung Yu To Interests held jointly with 

 in a controlled 
 corporation

Mr. Lee Tsz Kin Kenji Beneficial interest
      

(L) denotes long position

Notes:

Deed of Confirmation”), Mr. Lee, Mr. Ho Ting Chi (a 
former Director), Mr. Cheung Yue Pui (a former Director), Mr. Cheung Yu To and Mr. Cheung Wai Keung (a former Director) 
have agreed to jointly control their respective interests in the Company and decisions as to the business and operations of 
the Group shall be made in accordance with the unanimous consent of all of them.

Each of Mr. Lee, Mr. Ho Ting Chi, Mr. Cheung Yue Pui, Mr. Cheung Yu To and Mr. Cheung Wai Keung shall exercise their 
respective voting rights in the Company in the same way. Hence, each of Mr. Lee, Mr. Ho Ting Chi, Mr. Cheung Yue Pui, Mr. 
Cheung Yu To and Mr. Cheung Wai Keung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue 
of the SFO.

Deed of Confirmation, Mr. Ho Ting Chi, Mr. Cheung Yue Pui, Mr. Cheung Yu To and Mr. Cheung Wai Keung are deemed to 
be interested in such share options by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, 
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Interest in the shares of Cui Fa Limited — the immediate holding company of the Company

Name of Directors Nature of interest
Approximate

percentage

Mr. Lee Beneficial interest

Mr. Cheung Yu To Beneficial interest
   

Note:

deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Cui Fa Limited is interested or is deemed to be interested.

respective associates had any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the 
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be 

pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

the chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of shares or debentures of the 

had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year under 
review.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND 
UNDERLYING SHARES

and persons other than a Director or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position in the Shares 

therein, were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Capacity Number of Shares
Approximate
percentage

Ms. Chan Choi Fung Interest of spouse

Mr. Ho Ting Chi Interests held jointly with 

a controlled corporation

Mr. Cheung Yue Pui Interests held jointly with 

in a controlled corporation

Mr. Cheung Wai Keung Interests held jointly with 

in a controlled corporation

Ms. Woo Chun Li Interest of spouse

Ms. Tai Ngan Har Talia Interest of spouse

Ms. Lam Hiu Man(5) Interest of spouse

Ms. Lui Ning Interest of spouse

Cui Fa Limited Beneficial owner
    

(L) denotes long position
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND 
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

number of Shares in which Mr. Lee is interested or is deemed to be interested.

Keung have agreed to jointly control their respective interests in the Company and decisions as to the business and 
operations of the Group in accordance with the unanimous consent of all of them. Each of Mr. Lee, Mr. Ho Ting Chi, Mr. 
Cheung Yue Pui, Mr. Cheung Yu To and Mr. Cheung Wai Keung shall exercise their respective voting rights in the Company 
in the same way. Hence, each of Mr. Lee, Mr. Ho Ting Chi, Mr. Cheung Yue Pui, Mr. Cheung Yu To and Mr. Cheung Wai 
Keung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

same number of Shares in which Mr. Cheung Wai Keung is interested or is deemed to be interested.

the same number of Shares in which Mr. Ho Ting Chi is interested or is deemed to be interested.

(5) Ms. Lam Hiu Man is the wife of Mr. Cheung Yue Pui. Under the SFO, Ms. Lam Hiu Man is deemed to be interested in the same 
number of Shares in which Mr. Cheung Yue Pui is interested or is deemed to be interested.

Shares in which Mr. Cheung Yu To is interested or is deemed to be interested.

and Mr. Cheung Yu To, respectively.

or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares, which would be required to be disclosed to the Company 

register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, 
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its 
subsidiaries or associates was a party and in which any Director or controlling Shareholder had a material interest, 
whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company. Mr. Lee, Mr. Cheung Yu To 
and Mr. Lee Tsz Kin Kenji entered into their service agreements for a term of three years, respectively. For Mr. Lee 
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Each of the NEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Chung Fan, Mr. Cheng Yu Sang and Mr. Wong Chi Kin, had entered into an 
appointment letter with the Company for a term of th
appointment letters may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the appointment letters.

Mr. Yim Kwok Man and Mr. Goh Choo Hwee, were appointed INEDs pursuant to their respective letters of 

accordance with the terms of their letters of appointment.

member of the Group that is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, 
other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

employment of the Company, concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and other benefits paid 
by the Company to the Directors. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by the 
Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Details 

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that 
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be 
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges, 
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty 
in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the year under review. The 
Company has arranged for appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and 
officers of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders, which to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more 

customers or suppliers of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at 
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float for the issued Shares as required 
under the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

the date of this annual report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(A) Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions Subject to Reporting and Announcement 

Requirements

Property lease agreements

Des Voeux Road Central Tsui Wah Restaurant

subsidiary of the Company (as tenant) entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement A”) in respect of 

Des Voeux Road Premises”). 

Express Limited is, therefore, an associate of a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Aberdeen Tsui Wah Restaurant

Lease Agreement 
B

Hong Kong (the “Aberdeen Premises”). Pursuant to the Lease Agreement B, the lease is for a term effective 

International Limited to Champion Stage Limited in respect of the Aberdeen Premises for each of the three 

Limited is, therefore, an associate of a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
(Continued)

(A) Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions Subject to Reporting and Announcement 
Requirements (Continued)

Property lease agreements (Continued)

Hung To Road Tsui Wah Restaurant and Catering Services Centre

owned subsidiary of the Company (as tenant) entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement C”) in 

Hung To Road 
Premises

To, Mr. Cheung Yue Pui and Mr. Cheung Wai Keung, respectively, some of whom are the Directors or were the 

the Company under the Listing Rules.

Hart Avenue Tsui Wah Restaurant

Hart Avenue Lease Agreement”), Excellent 
Lead Limited agreed to lease from Cheermax Limited the premises located at shops A and B on the ground 
floor including yard A thereof and offices A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H on the first floor including the flat roof 

Hart Avenue 
Premises

Lead Limited as a restaurant. The original calendar monthly rent under the Hart Avenue Lease Agreement was 

supplemental lease agreement in relation to the leasing of the Hart Avenue Premises (the “Supplemental 
Lease Agreement

Period of Reduced Rent

As Cheermax Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Chan Choi Fung, the wife of Mr. Lee, Cheermax Limited is an 
associate of a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
(Continued)

(A) Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions Subject to Reporting and Announcement 
Requirements (Continued)

Property lease agreements (Continued)

Hart Avenue Tsui Wah Restaurant (Continued)

The annual caps for the rent payable by Excellent Lead Limited to Cheermax Limited in respect of the Hart 

entered into a termination agreement with Cheermax Limited to terminate the Hart Avenue Lease Agreement 

Excellent Lead Limited.

Confirmations from the INEDs and the Independent Auditor

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in 
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Independent Auditor were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in 

Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Independent Auditor have issued their unqualified letter 
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above 

been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmations from the Company

The Company has conducted a review of its continuing connected transactions and confirmed that all such 

Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
(Continued)

(B) Related Party Transactions

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group are 

connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed, except for those 

Reporting and Announcement Requirements”, in respect of which the disclosure requirements in accordance 

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the 
Prospectus”). The balance of such proceeds would be 

Hong Kong.

DONATIONS

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and any issues regarding the 
resignation or dismissal of the auditor. The Audit Committee also monitors the integrity of financial statements, 
annual reports and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports (if prepared for publication), and reviews material 
financial reporting judgments therein, as well as reviewing the financing control, internal control and risk management 
systems.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group with senior 
management and discussed the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters, including the review of the 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Ernst & Young, the Independent Auditor, will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, 

the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Hong
Chairman
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its 

comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of 

year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the 
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to 
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements.
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To the shareholders of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Property, plant and equipment impairment assessment

that its assets may be impaired. Accordingly, 
management had prepared cash flow projections for 
the respect ive  restaurants .  The impai rment 
assessment of property, plant and equipment is 
significant to our audit due to the magnitude of the 

of the Group’s property, plant and equipment is 
dependent on a range of estimates such as estimated 
future cash flows, discount rates and interest rates, 
etc., which are subjective and involved significant 
management judgement and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, inter alia, evaluating the 
Group’s policies and procedures in identifying impairment 
indicators and assessing management’s significant 
assumptions adopted, in particular those relating to the 
cash flow forecasts by reviewing the Group’s business 
plan, comparing with market discount rate and inflation 
rate and evaluating the growth rate by checking to market 
data such as forecasted number of tourists. Besides, our 
procedures also included a comparison of the cash flow 
forecasts with historical data of the Group. Furthermore, 
we assessed the adequacy of the disclosures on the 
impairment of property, plant and equipment.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates 
and disclosure of impairment of property, plant and 

consolidated financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

of  the  repor t ing  per iod ,  the  tax  impact  o f 
unrecognised tax losses in Hong Kong and Mainland 

respectively. Significant management judgement is 
involved to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and level of future taxable profits generated by 
the respective companies in the Group.

Our audit procedures included, among others, reviewing 
of profit forecasts and the Group’s latest tax strategies 
and strategic business plan to ascertain if sufficient taxable 
profits could be generated in the future to utilise the tax 
losses. We discussed with management and assessed the 
profit forecasts and the business plan by comparing the 
key assumptions such as growth rate to market data such 
as tourists growth rate and historical data such as gross 
profit margins and key operating costs.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates 
and disclosures of the recognition of deferred tax 

consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong 
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to 
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing 
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility 
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control.

related disclosures made by the directors.

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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To the shareholders of Tsui Wah Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ms. Dilys Chau Suet Fung.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Central, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

2017
Notes HK$’000

REVENUE 5 1,845,405

Other income 5 15,277
Cost of inventories sold (526,656)
Staff costs (531,072)
Depreciation and amortisation (110,628)
Property rentals and related expenses (315,279)
Fuel and utility expenses (90,429)
Selling and distribution expenses (30,761)
Other operating expenses (158,211)
Other expenses 7 –
Finance costs 6 (1,559)

27 –
Share of profits of joint ventures 16 31,893
    

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 127,980

Income tax expense 10 (37,282)
    

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 90,698
    

Attributable to:
 Owners of the Company 90,483

215
    

90,698
    

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY 
 HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12

 Basic HK6.41 cents
    

 Diluted HK6.41 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017
HK$’000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 90,698

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
 subsequent periods:
  Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (28,914)
   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 61,784
   

Attributable to:
 Owners of the Company 61,569

215
   

61,784
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2017
Notes HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 13 603,690
Prepaid land lease payments 14 67,595
Intangible assets 15 5,501
Investments in joint ventures 16 64,497
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant and 
 equipment and intangible assets 35,377

19 49,052
Deferred tax assets 25 18,950
    

844,662
    

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 17 18,312
Trade receivables 18 7,641
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19 98,352
Tax recoverable 9,048
Pledged time deposits 20 8,098
Cash and cash equivalents 20 496,604
    

Total current assets 638,055
    

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 21 77,044
Other payables and accruals 22 151,303

23 71,485
Finance lease payables 24 –
Tax payable 4,200
    

Total current liabilities 304,032
    

NET CURRENT ASSETS 334,023
    

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,178,685
    

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payable and accruals 22 17,294
Deferred tax liabilities 25 1,083
    

18,377
    

Net assets 1,160,308
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2017
Notes HK$’000

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Issued capital 26 14,112
Reserves 28 1,144,901
    

1,159,013

Non-controlling interests 1,295
    

Total equity 1,160,308
    

Lee Yuen Hong Cheung Yu To
Director Director

`
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company
 

Issued
capital

Share
premium
account

Share
option

reserve
Statutory

reserve
Merger
reserve

Exchange
fluctuation

reserve
Retained

profits Total
controlling

interests
Total

equity
Notes

(Note 28(ii)) (Note 28(i))

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
 Exchange differences on translation of 
  foreign operations
            

Total comprehensive income for the year

11
Issuance of new shares upon exercise of 
 share options 26(a)
Shares repurchased and cancelled 26(b)

27
Transfer of share option reserve upon the 
 forfeiture or expiry of share options
Transfer to statutory reserve
            

            

Attributable to owners of the Company
   

Issued
capital

Share
premium
account

Share
option

reserve
Statutory

reserve
Merger
reserve

Exchange
fluctuation

reserve
Retained

profits Total

Non–
controlling

interests
Total

equity
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note 28(ii)) (Note 28(i))

14,112 855,973 9,421 11,992 (8,434) (26,853) 313,206 1,169,417 1,080 1,170,497
Profit for the year – – – – – – 90,483 90,483 215 90,698
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
 Exchange differences on translation of 
  foreign operations – – – – – (28,914) – (28,914) – (28,914)
            

Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – – (28,914) 90,483 61,569 215 61,784
11 – – – – – – (22,580) (22,580) – (22,580)
11 – – – – – – (21,168) (21,168) – (21,168)
11 – – – – – – (28,225) (28,225) – (28,225)

Transfer to statutory reserve – – – 3,820 – – (3,820) – – –
            

14,112 855,973* 9,421* 15,812* (8,434)* (55,767)* 327,896* 1,159,013 1,295 1,160,308
            

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2017
Notes HK$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 127,980
Adjustments for:
 Bank interest income 5 (3,292)
 Share of profits of joint ventures (31,893)
 Depreciation 7 107,165
 Amortisation of land lease payments 7 1,962
 Amortisation of intangible assets 7 1,501

7 448
 Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment 7 –

7 3,479
 Finance costs 6 1,559

27 –
    

208,909

Decrease in inventories 4,521
Increase in trade receivables (762)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (24,344)

1,026
(10,198)

    

Cash generated from operations 179,152

Interest received 3,292
Interest paid (1,559)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (24,085)
PRC tax paid (15,913)
    

Net cash flows from operating activities 140,887
    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of intangible assets and items of
 property, plant and equipment 29 (110,283)
Dividends received from joint ventures 8,796
Decrease in pledged time deposits with original maturity of 
 three months or less than three months –
Increase in pledged time deposits with original maturity of 
 more than three months (4,507)

 maturity of more than three months when acquired 444
    

Net cash flows used in investing activities (105,550)
    



73

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2017
Notes HK$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank loans (5,188)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments (135)
Dividends paid (71,973)
Proceeds from issue of shares 26 –
Shares repurchased 26 –
    

Net cash flows used in financing activities (77,296)
    

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (41,959)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 546,787
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (8,224)
    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 496,604
    

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 20 365,298

20 131,306
    

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated statement of 
 financial position 496,604

 months when acquired –
    

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated statement of 
 cash flows 496,604
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the provision of food catering services through a chain 

China”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company name

Place of
incorporation/

registration
and business

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary share
capital/paid-up

registered capital

Percentage
of equity

attributable to
the Company

Principal activitiesDirect Indirect

Kang Wang Holdings Limited 
 (“Kang Wang”) 
康旺控股有限公司

British Virgin

Hong Kong

Investment holding

Cui Xin Holdings Limited (“Cui Xin”) 
翠新控股有限公司

Investment holding

Kenglory Limited
維勤有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Happy Oasis Limited
愉園有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Green Wave Limited
綠波有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Tsui Wah Restaurant (Holding) Limited
翠華餐廳（集團）有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Win Idea Investments Limited
同合投資有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Senfield Limited
誠發有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Billioncom (Hong Kong) Limited
富澤（香港）有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Sky Oasis (HK) Limited
天澤（香港）有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation
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Notes to Financial Statements

Company name

Place of
incorporation/

registration
and business

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary share
capital/paid-up

registered capital

Percentage
of equity

attributable to
the Company

Principal activitiesDirect Indirect

Royal Gold International Limited
皇金國際有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Tsui Wah Efford Management Limited
翠華怡富管理有限公司

Hong Kong Management service

Dragonsea Limited
游龍有限公司

Hong Kong Food factory

Tsui Wah Catering Limited
翠華飲食有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Shanghai Cai Hua Restaurants 

上海采華餐飲管理有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Shanghai Cui Sheng Restaurants 

上海翠盛餐飲有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Golden York World Limited
金旭滙有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

China Sure Limited
確華有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Pioneer Ray Limited
領熙有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Special Wise Limited
特維有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Common Way Limited
錦日有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Richberg Development Limited
智庫發展有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements

Company name

Place of
incorporation/

registration
and business

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary share
capital/paid-up

registered capital

Percentage
of equity

attributable to
the Company

Principal activitiesDirect Indirect

Ever Million Rich Limited
永萬富有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Famous China Enterprise Limited
采華企業有限公司

Hong Kong Owner of trademarks

Flying Gold Limited
翔金有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Happy Billions Limited
逸億有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Summer Rich Limited
夏富有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Wuhan Cai Hua Restaurants Management 

武漢采華餐飲管理有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Green Luck Limited
祥翠有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

New Power Zone Limited
新力天有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

New Top Star Limited
新富星有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Green Treasure Limited
樂翠有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Harmony Garden Limited
和園有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Shanghai Cai Sheng Restaurants 

上海采盛餐飲管理有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)
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Company name

Place of
incorporation/

registration
and business

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary share
capital/paid-up

registered capital

Percentage
of equity

attributable to
the Company

Principal activitiesDirect Indirect

Shanghai Hongkou Cui Sheng

上海虹口翠盛餐飲有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Shanghai Pudong Cui Sheng Restaurants 

上海浦東翠盛餐飲有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Hangzhou Cui Sheng Restaurants 

杭州翠盛餐飲管理有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Nanjing Cui Sheng Restaurants 

南京翠盛餐飲管理有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Wuxi Cui Sheng Restaurants 

無錫翠盛餐飲管理有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Guangzhou Cai Hua Restaurants 

廣州采華餐飲有限公司

PRC Restaurant operation

Shanghai He Fa Restaurants Company 

上海合發餐飲有限公司

PRC Food factory

Enrich Sources Limited
彩沃有限公司

Hong Kong Property holding

Corporate Winner Limited
洲永有限公司

Hong Kong Property holding

上海采華食品有限公司

PRC Food factory

Marvellous Mark Limited
潤贊有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)
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Company name

Place of
incorporation/

registration
and business

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary share
capital/paid-up

registered capital

Percentage
of equity

attributable to
the Company

Principal activitiesDirect Indirect

Good Core Limited
心園有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Green Skytop Limited
天翠有限公司

Hong Kong Catering service

Time Great Limited
騰嶺有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Excellent Lead Limited
優領有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Mark Lucky Limited
曼新有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Key Decision Limited
智心有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Prospect Green Limited
興翠有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

美憶有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

Wholly Win Limited
加賀有限公司

Hong Kong Restaurant operation

# The English names of these companies represent the best effort made by management of the Company to directly 
translate their Chinese names as they do not register any official English names.

 Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected 
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other 
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards 
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the 
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention. These 

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for 

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that 
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, 
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, 
including:

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using 
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group 
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date on which  such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent of 

transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest 
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of 

any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of 
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained 
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the 
related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial 
statements.

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
 Amortisation
Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Annual Improvements 2012–2014 Cycle Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

Annual Improvement to 2012–2014 Cycle, the adoption of 
the above new and revised standards has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

in financial statements. The amendments clarify:

(ii) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and the statement of financial position may 

and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using 
the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between 
those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented 
in the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss. The amendments have had no 
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) 

based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very 
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied prospectively. The 
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group as the Group has 

(c) Annual Improvements to 2012–2014 Cycle
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as follows:

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to a 
plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners should not be considered to be a new plan of 
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the 
application of the requirements in HKFRS 5. The amendments also clarify that changing the disposal 

for sale. The amendments are applied prospectively. The amendments have had no impact on the 
Group as the Group did not have any change in the plan of sale or disposal method in respect of 
the disposal group held for sale during the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet 
effective, in these financial statements.

Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Leases
Foreign Currency Transaction and Advance Consideration
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
 Insurance Contracts
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
 or Joint Venture
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Disclosure Initiative
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
Transfers of Investment Property

 in Annual Improvements 2014–2016
 Cycle

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

 in Annual Improvements 2014–2016
 Cycle

 in Annual Improvements 2014–2016
 Cycle

 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

share settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is 

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to 

Group’s financial assets.

or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of 
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving 
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the 
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. 
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to 

will be determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. 
However, the amendments are available for application now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (Continued)

a more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive 
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, information 
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances between periods and 
key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under 

identifying performance obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual 
property, and transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent application when 

Leases Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, 
Operating Leases — Incentives Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 

Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. 

leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the 
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the 

lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease 
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the 

upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term and change in future lease payments 
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise 

evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows 
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (Continued)

unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at fair value, although they also have a broader 
application for other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when assessing whether taxable profits 
will be available against which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax law 
restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible 
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future 
taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for 

or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when 
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the 
change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence 

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 

an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent 
of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the 
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In 
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group 
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated 
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence 
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as 
part of the Group’s investments in joint ventures.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is 
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all other 
cases, upon loss of joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained 
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture upon loss of joint 
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other than 
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is 

determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the 

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those 
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that 
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any 

such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow 
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel 
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its 
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for 
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into 
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major 
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of 
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as 
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose 
are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases Over the lease terms
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Catering and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is 
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, 
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial 
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on 
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the 
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under construction, which is stated at cost 
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and 
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in 
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and 
ready for use.

The Group revised the estimated useful lives for leasehold improvements. In the opinion of the directors, the 
revised estimates can reflect the estimated useful life of the property, plant and equipment more accurately. 
The effect of that change in accounting estimate for the current year was a decrease in depreciation and an 

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible 
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised 
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a 
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses and is amortised 
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal 
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is 
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, 
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance 
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and 
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant 
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but 
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted 
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are 

under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or 

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on 

land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a 
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans 

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are 
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, 
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that 
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of 
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables, other 
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part 
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in the 
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in 
finance costs for loans and in other operating expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset.

arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset 
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has 
retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the 
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a 
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or 
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and 
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit 
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective 
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet 
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount 
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or 

statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, certain accruals, finance lease payables and 
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are 
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in 
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to 
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand 
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts 
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within 
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of 
the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash 
on hand and at banks which are not restricted as to use.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event 
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is 
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries 
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting 
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 

when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of 

ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary 
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilised.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting 
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is 
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, 
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to 
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or 
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a 
reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the 
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(b) from the sale of food, when the products are sold to customers and the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial 

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by applying the rate that 
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument 
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible 
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the 

reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents 
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best 
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are 
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated 

performance conditions.

terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised 

the employee as measured at the date of modification.

vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award 
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, 
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in 
the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings 
per share.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF 
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its Hong Kong employees. 
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the 
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets 
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The 
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a 
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries operating in Mainland 
China are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The 
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the 
rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, that is, assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The 
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or 
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure 
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed 
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs 
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum and 
articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim 
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each 
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of 
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities 
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the 
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional 
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period. All differences arising on settlement or 
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when the fair value was measured. The gain or 

of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value 
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and a joint venture are currencies other than the Hong 
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into 
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of 
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The 
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive 
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are 
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently 

weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in 
the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the 
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to 
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements 
in the production and provision of services, or from a change in the market demand for the product or service 
output of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, care and maintenance of the 
asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on 
the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made if 

previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on 
changes in circumstances.
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of 

statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its 
value in use.

equipment because management determined that the carrying amounts of certain property, plant and 
equipment of several restaurants could not be recovered by the end of the respective lease periods. Further 

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

restaurants. Information reported to the Group’s management for the purpose of resources allocation and 
performance assessment focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are 
integrated and no discrete operating segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no operating 
segment information is presented.

Geographical information
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

(a) Revenue from external customers

2017
HK$’000

Hong Kong# 1,247,390
Mainland China 579,262
Others## 18,753
   

1,845,405
   

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.

Group’s total revenue during the year, no information about major customers is presented.

# Revenue from external customers located in Hong Kong includes revenue derived from the sale of food to a joint 

## Represents revenue derived from the sale of food to joint ventures of the Group.

(b) Non-current assets

2017
HK$’000

Hong Kong 347,622
Mainland China 375,140
Others 53,898
   

776,660
   

rental deposits and deferred tax assets.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Revenue represents amounts received and receivable from the operation of restaurants and the sale of food, 
net of sales related taxes. An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

2017
HK$’000

Revenue
Restaurant operations 1,817,715
Sale of food 27,690
   

1,845,405
   

Other income
Bank interest income 3,292
Rental income 3,370
Government grants (note) 5,693
Others 2,922
   

15,277
   

Note:

Government grants have been received by the Group from government authorities in Mainland China for financial support to 

6. FINANCE COSTS

2017
HK$’000

Interest on bank loans 1,556
Interest on finance leases 3
   

1,559
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

2017
Notes HK$’000

Cost of inventories sold 526,656
Depreciation 13 107,165
Amortisation of land lease payments 14 1,962
Amortisation of intangible assets 15 1,501

Minimum lease payments under operating leases 244,722
Contingent rents under operating leases 33,988
    

278,710
    

Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ and chief 
 executive’s remuneration (note 8)):
  Wages and salaries 475,610
  Retirement benefit scheme contributions 45,357
    

520,967
    

Auditor’s remuneration 2,530
13 448
13 –
19 3,479

Foreign exchange differences, net 2,994
    

statement of profit or loss.
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing 

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2017
HK$’000

Fees 1,878
Other emoluments:
 Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,150
 Performance related bonus 1,000

–
 Pension scheme contributions 77
   

10,105
   

 The chief executive of the Company is entitled to bonus payment which are determined with reference to the 
performance of the Group.

During the prior years, a director and the chief executive were granted share options in respect of their services 

of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the 
financial statements for the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration 
disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

2017
HK$’000

Mr. Yim Kwok Man 320
Mr. Wong Chi Kin# 245
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee 320

75
   

960
   

#
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief executive

Fees

Salaries,
allowances

and benefits
in kind

Performance
related
bonus

Pension
scheme

contributions
Total

remuneration
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Year ended 31 March 2017

Executive directors:
 Mr. Lee Yuen Hong – 1,440 – 18 1,458
 Mr. Ho Ting Chi – 240 – 3 243
 Mr. Cheung Yu To – 1,440 – 18 1,458
 Mr. Cheung Yue Pui^ – 600 – 8 608
 Mr. Lee Tsz Kin# – 350 – 7 357
      

– 4,070 – 54 4,124

 Mr. Ho Ting Chi 43 – – 2 45
 Mr. Wong Chi Kin (note 8a) 375 – – – 375

75 – – – 75
425 – – 7 432

      

918 – – 9 927

Chief executive:
– 3,080 1,000 14 4,094

      

918 7,150 1,000 77 9,145
      

^

#
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief executive (Continued)

Fees

Salaries,
allowances

and benefits
in kind

share option
expense

Pension
scheme

contributions
Total

remuneration

Year ended 31 March 2016

Executive directors:
 Mr. Lee Yuen Hong
 Mr. Ho Ting Chi
 Mr. Cheung Yu To
 Mr. Cheung Yue Pui
      

 Mr. Cheung Wai Keung^

Chief executive:
 Mr. Lock Kwok On#
      

      

^

#

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any 
remuneration during the year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2017
HK$’000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,103
Pension scheme contributions 36
   

3,139
   

the following bands is as follow:

2017

1
1

   

2
   

employee in respect of his services to the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in note 

profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the 

paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong at a rate of 

tax prevailing in the locations in which the Group operates.

2017
HK$’000

 Charge for the year 16,548
1,471

 Charge for the year 14,231
 Underprovision in prior years 1,002
Deferred tax (note 25) 4,030
   

Total tax charge for the year 37,282
   

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the locations in which 
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and 
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2017
Hong Kong PRC Total

HK$’000 % HK$’000 % HK$’000 %

Profit before tax 82,501 45,479 127,980
       

Tax at the statutory tax rates 13,613 16.5 11,370 25.0 24,983 19.5
Adjustment in respect of current 
 tax of previous periods 1,471 1.8 1,002 2.2 2,473 1.9
Income not subject to tax (311) (0.4) (465) (0.9) (776) (0.6)
Expenses not deductible for tax 1,486 1.8 1,636 3.6 3,122 2.4
Temporary differences not 
 recognised 4,428 5.4 607 1.3 5,035 4.0

 from previous periods 3,727 4.5 3,980 8.7 7,707 6.0
Profits attributable to joint 
 ventures (5,262) (6.4) – – (5,262) (4.1)
       

Tax charge at the Group’s 
 effective rates 19,152 23.2 18,130 39.9 37,282 29.1
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong PRC Total

Profit before tax
       

Tax at the statutory tax rates
Adjustment in respect of current 
 tax of previous periods
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax

 from previous periods
Profits attributable to joint 
 ventures
       

Tax charge at the Group’s 
 effective rates
       

or loss.
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11. DIVIDENDS

2017
HK$’000

28,225
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period

21,168
Special dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period

28,225
   

77,618
   

The proposed final and special dividends for the year are subject to the approval of the Company’s 
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 
COMPANY

during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and
buildings

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture
and

fixtures

Catering
and other

equipment
Motor

vehicles
Construction

in progress Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

31 March 2017

  Cost 387,693 342,002 69,184 194,835 6,619 7,482 1,007,815
  Accumulated depreciation and 
   impairment (19,408) (200,182) (28,089) (111,945) (4,060) – (363,684)
        

  Net carrying amount 368,285 141,820 41,095 82,890 2,559 7,482 644,131
        

 accumulated depreciation and
 impairment 368,285 141,820 41,095 82,890 2,559 7,482 644,131
Additions – 39,017 18,679 22,139 – 6,599 86,434

– (38) (11) (392) (7) – (448)
Transfers 11,500 1,608 114 (3,006) – (13,616) (3,400)
Depreciation provided during 
 the year (11,049) (48,664) (14,566) (31,828) (1,058) – (107,165)
Exchange realignment (8,592) (3,455) (1,628) (1,992) (26) (169) (15,862)
        

 accumulated depreciation 
 and impairment 360,144 130,288 43,683 67,811 1,468 296 603,690
        

 Cost 390,341 354,404 82,467 196,774 6,472 296 1,030,754
 Accumulated depreciation and 
  impairment (30,197) (224,116) (38,784) (128,963) (5,004) – (427,064)
        

 Net carrying amount 360,144 130,288 43,683 67,811 1,468 296 603,690
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Land and
buildings

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture
and

fixtures

Catering
and other

equipment
Motor

vehicles
Construction

in progress Total

31 March 2016

 Cost
 Accumulated depreciation
        

 Net carrying amount
        

 accumulated depreciation
Additions

Impairment
Transfer
Depreciation provided during 
 the year
Exchange realignment
        

 accumulated depreciation 
 and impairment
        

 Cost
 Accumulated depreciation and 
  impairment
        

 Net carrying amount
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

equipment, which was estimated based on the recoverable amount of each individual restaurant cash 
generating unit. The recoverable amount of the restaurant cash generating unit was determined based on a 
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a period of the 
remaining lease term plus the anticipated renewal period approved by senior management. The recoverable 

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

2017
HK$’000

75,795
Recognised during the year (1,962)
Exchange realignment (4,314)
   

69,519
Current portion included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (1,924)
   

67,595
   



112

Notes to Financial Statements

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software
HK$’000

31 March 2017

2,286
Additions 1,316
Transfer 3,400
Amortisation provided during the year (1,501)
  

5,501
  

 Cost 8,072
 Accumulated amortisation (2,571)
  

 Net carrying amount 5,501
  

Computer
software

31 March 2016

Additions
Amortisation provided during the year
  

  

 Cost
 Accumulated amortisation
  

 Net carrying amount
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16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2017
HK$’000

Share of net assets 64,497
   

repayment.

Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are as follows:

Name

Particulars
of issued

shares held

Place of
incorporation
and business

Percentage
of ownership

interest
Principal
activities

Pak Tat Catering Management
 Company Limited
百達餐飲管理有限公司

One “quota” Macau Restaurant
operation

The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.

Pak Tat Catering Management Company Limited, which is considered a material joint venture of the Group, 
operates restaurant business in Macau and is accounted for using the equity method.



114

Notes to Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of Pak Tat Catering Management Company 
Limited, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the 
financial statements:

2017
HK$’000

Cash and cash equivalents 91,410
Other current assets 7,919
   

Total current assets 99,329
   

26,981
   

Current liabilities (49,314)
   

Net assets 76,996
   

Reconciliation to the Group’s investment in the joint venture:
 Proportion of the Group’s ownership 70%
 Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture 53,898
 Carrying amount of the investment 53,898
   

Revenue 156,783
Tax (5,814)
Profit for the year 41,501
Dividend received 6,796
   

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually 
material:

2017
HK$’000

Share of the joint venture’s profit for the year 2,842
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment in the joint venture 10,599
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17. INVENTORIES

2017
HK$’000

Food and beverage, and other operating items for restaurant operations 18,312
   

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2017
HK$’000

Trade receivables 7,641
   

strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly 
by senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade 

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is 
as follows:

2017
HK$’000

Within one month 4,699
One to two months 2,942
   

7,641
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is 
as follows:

2017
HK$’000

Neither past due nor impaired 5,449
Less than one month past due 2,192
   

7,641
   

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a number of customers for whom there was no 
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a 
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion 
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant 
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

offered to the major customers of the Group.
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017
HK$’000

Prepayments 28,336
Deposits 95,017
Other receivables 13,067
Amounts due from joint ventures (note 16) 10,984
   

147,404
Current portion included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (98,352)
   

49,052
   

impaired. Financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent 
history of default.
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017
Note HK$’000

Time deposits 139,404
Less: Pledged time deposits with original maturity of
   more than three months when acquired 31 (8,098)
    

131,306
Cash and bank balances 365,298
    

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in consolidated statement
 of financial position 496,604
Non pledged time deposits with original maturity of more than
 three months when acquired –
    

Cash and cash equivalent as stated in the consolidated
 statement of cash flows 496,604
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in:

290,406
 Renminbi (“RMB”) 206,198
    

496,604
    

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control 
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group 
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange 
business.

All the pledged time deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are 
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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21. TRADE PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as 
follows:

2017
HK$’000

Within one month 51,994
One to two months 25,050
   

77,044
   

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2017
HK$’000

Other payables 84,554
Amount due to a joint venture (note 16) 1,831
Accruals 82,212
   

168,597
Current portion included in other payables and accruals (151,303)
   

17,294
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23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

2017
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000

Effective
interest

Maturity

Current
1 Month

HIBOR+1.75% On demand 71,485 On demand
       

2017
HK$’000

Analysed into:
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
 Within one year or on demand 71,485
   

The Group’s bank loans are secured by mortgages over the Group’s land and buildings, which had an 

borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable on demand.

The amounts payable based on the maturity terms of the loans are analysed as follows:

2017
HK$’000

Bank loans:
 Within one year 5,087
 In the second year 5,197
 In the third to fifth years, inclusive 16,333
 Beyond five years 44,868
   

71,485
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24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
In the prior year, the Group leased certain of its motor vehicles for business use. The lease was classified as 
finance leases and had a remaining lease term of one year.

values were as follows:

Minimum
lease payments

Present value
of minimum

lease payments

Amounts payable:
 Within one year
   

Total minimum finance lease payments
 

Future finance charges
  

Total net finance lease payables
  

In the prior year, all the Group’s finance lease payables were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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25. DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Others

Depreciation
in excess

of related
depreciation

allowance Total

Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of 
 profit or loss during the year (note 10)
    

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of 
 profit or loss during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment
    

    

Deferred tax liabilities

Others

Depreciation
allowance
in excess

of related
depreciation Total

 statement of profit or loss during the year (note 10)
    

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of 
 profit or loss during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment
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25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

profits of those companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is 

be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the 

unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland 
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in 
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled 

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its 
shareholders.
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26. ISSUED CAPITAL

Number of
ordinary shares

of HK$0.01 
each

Nominal
value of
ordinary

shares
Notes

Authorised:

    

Issued and fully paid:

Share options exercised (a)
Shares repurchased and cancelled (b)
    

    

Notes:

share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(a) Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating 
eligible persons to optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract 
and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing relationships with such eligible persons whose contributions 

date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option 
Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue or grant of options or similar rights over shares or 

Company as at the Listing Date (without taking into account the shares which may be issued and allotted 

been obtained.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted 
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not, in aggregate, 

limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to or to be 
granted to each eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group 

the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of further share options above this limit shall be subject to 
certain requirements provided under the Listing Rules.

Any grant of options to a connected person under the Listing Rules must be approved by all of the 

is a proposed grantee).

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within upon payment of a nominal consideration of 

The exercise price for any share under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the board 
of directors and notified to each grantee and shall be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a 
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option, 
which must be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the average of the closing prices of a share as 
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding 
the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option scheme (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted during the current and prior years, and no share options were outstanding 

(b) Pre-IPO share option scheme

providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s 

date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

2017
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options

HK$ ’000
per share per share

At beginning of year 2.27 26,800
Exercised during the year – –
Forfeited during the year – –
Expired during the year – –
     

At end of year 2.27 26,800
     

In the prior year, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised was 
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting 
period are as follows:

2017

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
’000 HK$

per share

13,200 2.27 26-11-13 to 25-11-17
13,600 2.27 26-11-15 to 25-11-17

 

26,800
 

2016

Number of options Exercise period

per share

 

 

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

financial statements.

Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital 
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28. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are presented 
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(i) Merger reserve

(ii) Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC 
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC, 
and were approved by the respective boards of directors.

29. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transaction

During the current year, the Group recognised the estimated obligations, included in the Group’s property, 

plant and equipment in respect of the restaurants under operating lease.

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial statements were as 
follows:

2017
HK$’000

Bank guarantees in favour of landlords in lieu of rental deposits 8,092
   

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

financial statements. The Group’s bank guarantees in lieu of rental deposits are secured by the pledged time 
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group leases certain of its restaurants, office premises and warehouses under operating lease 
arrangements. Leases for these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.

falling due as follows:

2017
HK$’000

Within one year 216,650
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 400,415
After five years 83,697
   

700,762
   

In addition, the operating lease rentals for certain restaurants are based on the higher of a fixed rental and a 
contingent rent depending on the sales of these restaurants pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in 
the respective rental agreements. As the future sales of these restaurants could not be reliably determined, the 
relevant contingent rent has not been included above and only the minimum lease commitments have been 
included in the above table.

33. COMMITMENTS

commitments at the end of the reporting period.

2017
HK$’000

Contracted, but not provided for:
 Land and buildings 8,122
 Leasehold improvements 2,661
 Intangible assets 847
   

11,630
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(i) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the 

following transactions with related parties during the year:

2017
HK$’000

Sale of food to joint ventures (a) 27,690

Purchase of food from a joint venture (b) –

Rental fees paid and payable to:
 Success Path Limited (c) 3,208
 Champion Stage Limited (c) 2,275

(c) 13,592
 Cheermax Limited (d) 80
    

The transactions were conducted on terms and conditions mutually agreed between the relevant parties. 
The directors are of the opinion that these related party transactions were conducted in the ordinary 
course of business of the Group.

The related party transactions in respect of rental fees above also constitute continuing connected 

Notes:

(a) The selling prices of food sold to joint ventures were mutually agreed between the parties, which approximated 
market rates.

which approximated market rates.

(c) These related parties are controlled by the current and former directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Yuen 
Hong, Mr. Ho Ting Chi, Mr. Cheung Yu To, Mr. Cheung Wai Keung and Mr. Cheung Yue Pui. Mr. Ho Ting Chi, 
Mr. Cheung Wai Keung and Mr. Cheung Yue Pui are the former directors of the Company. The rental fees were 
determined between the Group and the parties, which approximated market rates.

(d) This related party is controlled by Ms. Chan Choi Fung, the spouse of Mr. Lee Yuen Hong, which were mutually 
agreed between the parties and approximated market rates.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group, including directors’ and the chief executive’s 

2017
HK$’000

Short term employee benefits 13,456
–

126
   

13,582
   

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

financial liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, pledged 
time deposits with original maturity of more than three months, trade receivables, trade payables, financial 
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other 
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these 
instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the chief financial officer is responsible for determining the 
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team 
reports directly to the directors and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate finance team 
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the 
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the directors. The valuation process and results are 
discussed with the directors twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be 
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining 

was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Other payable and accruals
– 17,294 – 17,294

     

Finance lease payables
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

borrowings and finance lease payables. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade 

accruals and balances with joint ventures.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and 
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised 
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings 
with floating interest rates. The Group operates at a low gearing ratio and as the market interest rates are stable 
and are maintained at a relatively low level, the Group’s interest rate risk is not significant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in Hong Kong dollar interest 
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate 
borrowings).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

2017

100 (715)
(100) 715

   

2016
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars or 
RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible 

to changes in fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax

2,970
(2,970)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of 
bank borrowings. The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has adequate 
financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the 
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Less than 
one year 

or on demand
Above

one year Total

Trade payables 77,044 – 77,044
Financial liabilities included in other 
 payables and accruals 108,726 17,294 126,020

72,893 – 72,893
Bank guarantees in lieu of rental deposits 8,098 – 8,098
    

266,761 17,294 284,055
    

Trade payables
Financial liabilities included in other 
 payables and accruals
Finance lease payables

Bank guarantees in lieu of rental deposits
    

    



136

Notes to Financial Statements

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise the 
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic 
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to the 
shareholders, return capital to the shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally 
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing 

borrowings plus finance lease payables over capital. Capital represents equity attributable to owners of the 
Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

2017
HK$’000

71,485
Finance lease payables –
   

71,485
   

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,159,013
   

Gearing ratio 6.2%
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as 
follows:

2017
HK$’000

Investments in subsidiaries 1,202,754
   

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 236
Due from subsidiaries 833,388
Cash and bank balances 109,779
   

Total current assets 943,403
   

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accruals 34
Due to subsidiaries 58,867
   

Total current liabilities 58,901
   

NET CURRENT ASSETS 884,502
   

Net assets 2,087,256
   

Share capital 14,112
Reserves (Note) 2,073,144
   

Total equity 2,087,256
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share Share
premium Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total

Profit and total comprehensive 
 income for the year
Issuance of new shares upon 
 exercise of share options
Transfer to reserve upon the 
 forfeiture or expiry of option
Shares repurchased and cancelled

 arrangements

      

Profit and total comprehensive 
 income for the year

      

      

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant 
to the reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained 

transferred to the share premium account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should 
the related options expire or be forfeited.
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39. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. In the 
opinion of the directors of the Company, this presentation would better reflect the financial performance of the 
Group.

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Five Year Financial Summary

RESULTS

Year ended 31 March

2017
HK$’000

REVENUE 1,845,405
      

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 127,980

Income tax expense (37,282)
      

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 90,698
      

Profit attributable to:
 Owners of the Company 90,483

215
      

90,698
      

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 March

2017
HK$’000

TOTAL ASSETS 1,482,717
TOTAL LIABILITIES (322,409)
      

1,160,308
      

Equity attributable to owners 
 of the Company 1,159,013

1,295
      

1,160,308
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